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 LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF ONTARIO ASSEMBLÉE LÉGISLATIVE DE L’ONTARIO 

STANDING COMMITTEE ON 
THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY 

COMITÉ PERMANENT DE 
L’ASSEMBLÉE LÉGISLATIVE 

 Wednesday 25 March 2015 Mercredi 25 mars 2015 

The committee met at 1304 in committee room 1. 

COMMITTEE BUSINESS 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): We reconvene the 

Standing Committee on the Legislative Assembly for the 
purpose of organization. It sounds familiar. 

Ms. Soo Wong: I hear an echo. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: I move that Randy Hillier become 

the Chair of the committee. 
Interjection. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: That’s not what we’re doing? 
Mr. Randy Hillier: No. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: Oh. 
Interjections. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Committee, as I 

understand it—and I did not chair the last meeting—
normally, we would be voting on the amendment of Mr. 
Hillier to the motion of Mr. Ballard regarding Bill 56. I 
might ask the Clerk to just briefly explain where we’re at 
right now. 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): In 
the last meeting, we were awaiting a vote on Mr. Hillier’s 
amendment to Mr. Ballard’s motion on Bill 56. Since that 
last meeting, the bill has been discharged from this 
committee and sent to another committee. Therefore, Bill 
56 is no longer before this committee, and I’m assuming 
that the Chair is about to rule both the amendment and 
the original motion out of order. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): On behalf of the 
whole committee and as Chair, I think I would rule that 
both the amendment and the motion are out of order. 
Thank you. 

The next order of business: Seeing none, I open the 
floor for any new business. 

Mr. Steve Clark: Chair, we had a motion before the 
committee, which I believe the Clerk is handing out, that 
programs a discussion for a finite period of time before 
the committee, that being the finite three-week discussion 
of e-petitions, and then the committee would deal with 
the three private members’ bills that were part of the 
motion several weeks ago. My understanding was that 
after we dealt with those three bills, there would still be 
an opportunity for us before the House rises to have 
another discussion, if we don’t come into some con-
sensus on moving forward. 

Certainly from our perspective, Mr. Hillier’s and my 
perspective, based on the discussion we had on e-
petitions, we do have a motion that he would like to table 
regarding e-petitions. But I’m just wondering if the Clerk 
could tell us, based on the motion that we passed on 
February 18, what would be the schedule for this com-
mittee from now until this motion has been satisfied. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Everyone has before 
them a page that was passed on February 18— 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: This hasn’t been passed, it says. 
Mr. Steve Clark: It’s been passed. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): —carried February 

18. 
Mr. Steve Clark: Through you, Chair, to the Clerk, 

can he go through the schedule for this committee based 
on the motion that was passed on February 18? 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): I 
will try. What we have is, this was passed on February 
18. We would have had the order of business set on Feb-
ruary 18. February 25 would be considered e-petitions 
week 1 and March 4 would be e-petitions week 2. 
According to this, there is a revisiting of the schedule 
after two weeks of e-petitions, which—because we really 
didn’t move any further on that second week, the 4th, the 
motion for Bill 56 was first introduced. The committee 
then moved to the motion on Bill 56 on March 4 and the 
motion for Bill 56 on March 11. We now find ourselves 
with that motion gone. 

We are sitting after two weeks, roughly, of e-petition 
work. According to this, the committee will revisit its 
schedule with, potentially, at least another week of e-
petitions, depending on the outcome of the committee, 
before it moves to these other bills, as I read it. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Balkissoon. 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Did I hear you say we had two 

weeks of e-petitions? Because I thought we only had the 
Clerk on the one week. In the original week, the first 
week, we discussed programming, what we were going 
to do. 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): 
What I’ve got—and again, this is subject to checking—
this was carried on the 18th. We had the 25th meeting on 
e-petitions— 

Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Right. And the Clerk was here. 
The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): 

That’s correct. 
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Mr. Bas Balkissoon: So that’s the first meeting on e-
petitions, in my mind. 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): On 
the 4th, we had scheduled a meeting on e-petitions at that 
time, and the motion on Bill 56 started. So the definition 
of how much was e-petitions and how much was Bill 56 
is open for interpretation. 
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Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Right. In my mind, it’s one 
week. 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: So you’ve done one week on e-
petitions. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Hillier. 
Mr. Randy Hillier: Just for clarification—hopefully 

it’s clarification. If you look at the motion that was 
adopted on February 18, and we take out the e-petition 
component of it, it had seven weeks of hearings on the 
three other bills. We did consume a number of weeks 
talking about Bill 56 instead of e-petitions. Looking at 
the legislative calendar, I believe we have nine more 
sitting weeks until we rise in June. So we can still accom-
plish the seven weeks that we’ve put forward in the 
February 18 motion if we dispense with the e-petitions 
considerations fairly rapidly. 

With that in mind, Chair, I would like to table a mo-
tion regarding e-petitions and get us back onto the 
schedule. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): First of all, I don’t 
think you asked the Clerk about the timeline, the nine 
weeks. 

Mr. Randy Hillier: If my timelines are incorrect, then 
maybe he can correct that. 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): 
What I am seeing right now, including this meeting, so 
March 25 being the first, are nine more potential meeting 
dates, including this meeting today. 

Mr. Steve Clark: That’s what Mr. Hillier said. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Do you want to read 

in your motion? 
Mr. Randy Hillier: Okay. So my motion is— 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: I thought we were still on this 

here—just before you get to that motion, because there 
was a point that I wanted to make to this. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Would that be—yes? 
Mr. Randy Hillier: Well, that motion has already 

been carried. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: No, no. But I wanted to discuss 

this— 
Mr. Randy Hillier: I’ll defer to— 
Interjection. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: Yes, I understand. I just wanted to 

make a point in regard to that. 
I understand that it’s been voted on in committee; I 

understand the process and I know where we’re at. But it 
just seems to me that what essentially now you have—
because when you made that decision, those were the 
bills that were before this committee. There were two 
Liberal bills and one Conservative bill. We’ve since then 
had two other bills referred to this committee, one 

Conservative bill and one New Democratic bill. I would 
ask for a friendly amendment, that if we’re going to do 
two weeks on each of the bills, we do one from each 
caucus, now that we actually have a bill referred to this 
committee. So there would be one Liberal bill, one 
Conservative bill and one NDP bill. So I’d like to 
propose a motion to amend the February 18 motion, that 
we actually reflect that. It seems to me that that would be 
fair. Everybody gets a kick at the can. 

Mr. Randy Hillier: I’m going to go on a point of 
order. I thought that was—I deferred because there was a 
clarification. I would kindly ask the Chair that I had 
requested a motion to be tabled first and that my motion 
be heard first. 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: I have no objection to hearing your 
motion. My point is, I don’t want to let the opportunity 
go, that the committee business is now—if it moves 
forward as proposed by the February 18 motion, I ask 
that it be amended so that in fact there is a bill from each 
caucus that is dealt with within that rotation. 

So we want to deal with yours first? I’m fine. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): So let’s hear Mr. 

Hillier’s motion, and, if need be, Mr. Bisson, perhaps an 
amendment to that motion would be in order. 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: Yes, because we’re now discuss-
ing the last point of the motion on February 18, right? So 
it says that the committee revisit—anyway, okay. 

Mr. Randy Hillier: Okay. I move that the Standing 
Committee on the Legislative Assembly recommend to 
the House that the assembly permit the tabling of elec-
tronic petitions that mimics the current process for paper 
petitions; and 

That any signatures on any petition can only be col-
lected on a member’s official legislative website; and 

That the format of the electronic petition be presented 
to the Legislature in printed form, including the 
individual’s full name, email address, mailing address 
and phone number, as well as the full-text copy of the 
petition that has been signed; and 

That the electronic petition process be implemented on 
a trial basis up until the end of the fall legislative session 
of 2015. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): We’ll get copies of 
this motion. Now, my understanding is, we were discuss-
ing scheduling before this motion. 

Mr. Randy Hillier: My understanding is that we— 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: That’s why I was trying to make 

an amendment on scheduling. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): So the motion is on 

the floor. Let’s have a five-minute recess for a copy. 
The committee recessed from 1315 to 1320. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): We do have a motion 

on the floor which was read in by Mr. Hillier. I saw some 
indications of discussion— 

Mr. Bas Balkissoon: I had my hand up. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Oh, I’m sorry. 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: I think Gilles had his hand up 

first. I was second. 
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Mr. Gilles Bisson: Yes, are we talking to Mr. Hillier’s 
motion now? 

Interjections. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): We should allow Mr. 

Hillier to speak to his own motion first. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: Yes, not a problem. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Then Mr. Bisson and 

then Mr. Balkissoon. 
Mr. Randy Hillier: Thank you, Chair. As we all 

know, we’ve discussed electronic petitions for a few 
years in this assembly, and we’ve heard from the Clerks. 
A significant amount of analysis and evaluation and 
considerations have been provided. I’ve tabled this 
motion, which I believe meets with the spirit of those 
discussions and limits any negative consequences or 
unknowns that were explained to this committee. 

This motion, as it states, would mimic the existing 
system completely. There would be no new costs borne 
by the assembly. The same safeguards that are in place 
for the paper petitions are included and encapsulated with 
the electronic petitions. The safeguard is further re-
inforced by no alterations in the process of what happens 
after a petition is tabled in the House. 

I’ve also done this in a spirit of co-operation, that we 
implement and try it for a period of time which I think is 
reasonable, but that it is indeed a pilot project, a trial 
basis, and that this committee or the House would be able 
to evaluate it or make changes in due course. 

It’s also worded, in the proper fashion, that this assem-
bly recommends to the House. We can’t unilaterally alter 
the standing orders, but our jurisdiction and our respon-
sibility here is to investigate, examine, evaluate and make 
recommendations to the House. 

That’s my statement on this motion. I hope you find 
that it considers all those discussions that we’ve heard 
from professional people, and that it is in keeping with 
the idea to modernize the Legislative Assembly and 
safeguard the institution at the same time. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Thank you, Mr. 
Hillier. 

Mr. Bisson? 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: Well, I want to be supportive. I 

think the idea of moving to e-petitions is long overdue. I 
think there are problems in doing that, and I think other 
members will speak to that in some detail. But I want to 
speak specifically to your motion. 

I don’t have a problem with it being on members’ 
websites. However, our websites are not set up to deal 
with some of the issues that have to dealt with when it 
comes to e-petitions. For example, and I don’t know how 
this is done, but I’ve seen somebody do it before where 
they go up and they vote numerous times on those polls 
for the papers. They do something. I don’t know what 
they do. They do some kind of command on the comput-
er and they vote multiple times on the poll for the radio 
station or the poll for the paper, so that one person ends 
up voting a gazillion times and skews the outcome of the 
poll. 

My website doesn’t have the ability to deal with that 
kind of stuff, so I could end up with a legitimate petition 
that the member wants to move forward—and I entirely 
support the idea of putting it online. But you could end 
up with a situation where one person represents 50% of 
the signatures on the petition that’s coming forward by 
doing whatever voodoo magic you’ve got to do with the 
computer to get it to do whatever it’s got to do. I want to 
put that on the record. 

The other thing is, I remember when we sat and dealt 
with this issue in a minority Parliament. I was a member 
of the Legislative Assembly committee then. There were 
a number of technical things that needed to be dealt with 
above the standing orders, because the standing orders 
are meant currently to deal with paper petitions. It was 
never contemplated that the current standing orders 
would deal with electronic petitions. 

I do remember us talking to various people at the time 
that are more learned on this than I am—and I want to, 
first of all, say that I’m certainly not an expert. But there 
are a number of issues that we need to deal with. I’m just 
trying to remember some of them. Currently, when it 
comes to a petition, is there a lower limit as to what is a 
petition or what isn’t a petition when it comes to the 
number of signatures? There were threshold issues. There 
were other issues that I can’t remember. 

But I just want to say that I want to be supportive. I 
think this is really a step in the right direction. I think the 
member is right: It’s high time that we move forward 
with electronic petitions. This committee has been deal-
ing with this at a snail’s pace. It’s been, what, two Parlia-
ments now and we’re still no closer today than we were 
two Parliaments ago in getting electronic petitions. But I 
have a problem with this particular motion, especially 
with the second bullet point, and somewhat with the first 
bullet point. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Balkissoon? 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: I will state at the onset that I’m 

a full supporter of e-petitions. I’m also highly supportive 
of modernizing the Legislature and public engagement, 
but I have a lot of difficulty with what Mr. Hillier has just 
moved, because—if I could just go through his petition, 
and maybe he’ll get an opportunity to respond and clarify 
things. 

We started out, as a committee, when the committee 
tabled to study e-petitions in their entirety, all options, all 
the obstacles and all the technical issues that Mr. Bisson 
just covered. I think we started out in the right direction 
because we had a particular motion with X number of 
days. We clearly put in it that after two days of discus-
sion and hearing some witnesses, we would revisit our 
time schedule if we believed there was more to be done. 

If I look at Mr. Hillier’s motion, in the first one he 
says to recommend to the assembly to permit the tabling 
of electronic petitions that mimics the current paper 
process. So right there, he has decided what process it 
would be, and that circumvents the original intent of the 
committee’s work. I have a lot of difficulty with that 
because it’s making us make a decision today that we 
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haven’t studied; we haven’t looked at all the various 
options that are available to us. 

The piece about signatures: I have difficulty under-
standing. Is he talking electronic signatures or the physic-
al signature of a person whose signature you recognize? 
That one leaves me open so that I’m not sure what the 
second paragraph is. 

If I look at the third paragraph, it says to present the 
petition in printed form with all these details. I have 
difficulty understanding what the petition will look like 
when it’s presented to the Legislature. Without seeing 
what it looks like and understanding, I’m reluctant to 
support this. 

If you look at the whole motion, Mr. Hillier has 
actually circumvented the committee’s work to study pe-
titions and he’s telling us that this is the model we should 
adopt. To be honest with you, Mr. Hillier and Mr. Clark 
have been very good; they’ve shared with us that they 
have electronic petitions on their websites. I don’t have 
any. I don’t have a website. I have a Legislative Assem-
bly website that’s pretty basic because it can’t do these 
things. So if you want to make this available to all 
members, it’s not going to happen overnight as it’s sort 
of perceived in this particular motion. 

There are a lot of difficulties I have with this motion 
because it’s not allowing us to study. It’s not allowing us 
to do research. It’s not allowing us to bring people here 
who are experts where they have adopted e-petitions 
already, as we discussed, like the House of Commons, 
Wales, England etc. In fact, I just came back from a tour 
of Westminster and I did ask the question of the Clerk, 
“Who is in charge of e-petitions?” They went through an 
almost two-year study about where they wanted to land. 
They had a lot of discussions and they had a lot of 
difficulties dealing with it. They haven’t come to that 
final model yet. They were actually copying something 
that was at 10 Downing Street, but they want to modify it 
and modernize it. They have not finished, and they’ve 
been doing it for two years. I’ve asked the Clerk at 
Westminster to provide us with their minutes of meetings 
or reports or whatever they have available, and it was 
promised that it would be mailed to the Speaker of the 
House. I’m hoping to get that soon. 
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I don’t want to rush, but I think Mr. Hillier’s trying to 
give us a quick fix. You know what, Chair? I came here 
not to find a Band-Aid solution to petitions today; I came 
here to study something that will really engage the public 
in a true fashion to modernize the Legislature. I’m 
prepared to do that much. In fact, I came with a motion 
that we go back to e-petitions and leave it wide open; that 
we research it and do it right. 

I was going to look at how I can amend this motion, 
that we just go back to what we were doing on e-petitions 
and continue to study and continue to call the experts in, 
even if we’ve got to get them by phone or video or 
whatever, or get them here in person. I’m prepared to do 
that. I’m not prepared to do a Band-Aid solution. 

So I have difficulty with this motion, and I hope—no 
offence, that he’s had it on his website. I haven’t had the 
experience. I haven’t even gone to your website to see 
what you do. So I have difficulty in putting a lot of 
credibility to what you are doing. I have to personally 
experience it before I feel comfortable. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Thank you, Mr. 
Balkissoon. I’ll go to Mr. Clark. 

Mr. Steve Clark: Thanks, Chair. I’m in favour of the 
motion, obviously. I, like Mr. Balkissoon and Mr. 
Bisson, sat on the committee as we dealt with the stand-
ing orders, and I don’t think the standing orders are a 
Band-Aid solution. They’re the rules that our Legislature 
operate under. 

I feel that this motion allows us to run on a provisional 
basis, because we can actually do something while we’re 
studying this issue. I’m certainly not saying we can’t 
continue to study it, and Ms. McNair has done a wonder-
ful report. I’m sure the report you got from West-
minster—I don’t travel, obviously, in the same circles as 
Mr. Balkissoon that I can go to Westminster and talk to 
the Clerk. But I do think that what I didn’t see in the 
previous review was any action. I didn’t see anything 
moving forward. 

I know that, as the opposition House leader—I’m not 
going to speak for the third party House leader—in my 
conversations with Mr. Naqvi, and I’m not saying this to 
get him mad at me again. I see his staff in the back, and I 
don’t want them to rush out and tell him I was saying 
anything disparaging. But I think he wants to change 
some of the things on how we do business. 

All Mr. Hillier and I are trying to do is to take what we 
do today on our websites—certainly Mr. Hillier does it 
more than I have done—with very little cost, with very 
little extra expense in my constituency office. I provide 
the constituents, in a small way, with a vehicle that they 
use every day. The fact of the matter is, our constitu-
ents—mine, yours, ours—use electronic petitions and 
other electronic forms of communication. We have not 
met their needs in terms of providing a vehicle for them 
to communicate to us electronically. 

This provisional measure can still satisfy this commit-
tee’s motion of February 28. It still could give us an op-
portunity for us to hear these three bills and, even with 
two weeks left in the schedule, could even hear one of 
Mr. Bisson’s bills to help him, and then continue to give 
us the opportunity to have this study that you want, to get 
feedback on our provisional decision to allow e-petitions, 
to legitimize e-petitions, at next to no cost, while we’re 
studying it for six months, 12 months, two years, what-
ever the committee decides. 

I think we can have the best of both worlds. I think we 
can continue to provide paper petitions and allow an 
opportunity to test e-petitions. And listen: I hear, through 
you, Chair, to Mr. Balkissoon, what you are saying with 
your website. Not everyone’s website has the techno-
logical capabilities. I didn’t think mine did either and was 
surprised at how easy and quick it was to be able to 
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provide this feature to my constituents. They loved it. 
They thought it was great. 

I think we can pass this motion and show that this 
committee is actually making some progress. I know that, 
as the opposition House leader, I would be delighted to 
say that we’ve made some progress. 

Our caucus is already doing it. Our caucus is already 
doing electronic petitions, and we’re communicating 
back. So it’s happening now, and I just feel that this 
would be a natural extension, as Mr. Hillier does, to the 
paper process, to allow us the opportunity to try this until 
the end of the session. 

We can have our hearings. We can have hearings for 
these three bills, even add a fourth to make the NDP 
happy, and still give us the entire fall session—the times 
that this committee meets in September, October, 
November and December—to continue this discussion, 
just like Mr. Balkissoon had suggested in his motion. 

I support this motion. I think it’s the right way to go. I 
know Mr. Hillier has some comments to respond directly 
to Mr. Balkissoon, but I think this is a good move on our 
part. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Hillier. 
Mr. Randy Hillier: Yes. Thank you. I’d like to re-

spond in order. I’ll respond to Mr. Bisson’s comments 
first, and then Mr. Balkissoon’s. 

First off, I put this in there: that it’s the member’s 
legislative website. The purpose and the reason behind 
that, the rationale, is because that falls under the Mem-
bers’ Integrity Act. So, if there is any wrongdoing, it’s 
captured under the Members’ Integrity Act, and we have 
an independent officer of the assembly who has jurisdic-
tion to enforce and ensure compliance under the Mem-
bers’ Integrity Act. 

That’s one very substantial safeguard, and I think it’s 
most fundamental that we understand our actions as 
members and on our websites are guarded and enforced 
by the integrity officer, as well as other independent 
officers of the House. It also permits any other MPP to 
lodge a complaint with the Integrity Commissioner if 
somebody is using their website inappropriately. There’s 
a substantial safeguard. 

Further to Mr. Bisson’s comments, websites are not 
static. You make them the way you want them to 
perform. On my website, my petitions only allow one 
email address to be inserted, and that’s a pretty common 
practice. I get complaints because a husband and wife 
who have the same email address can only sign once. 

But again, I’m going to take the committee back to 
what the Clerk mentioned as far as safeguards: There is 
nothing at the present time that prevents somebody from 
signing the same petition on multiple occasions. There’s 
nothing there. But we do know that most people have 
better things to do than going around and sign the same 
petitions over and over—there may be a few odd ones 
out there, but generally speaking. 

The last comment by Mr. Bisson was on thresholds. 
At the present time, our petition process has no reference 
to thresholds. All you need is one signature. That’s the 

minimum threshold. There is no maximum. One of the 
reasons why there are no thresholds is because there is no 
action that is compelled by the government from a 
petition. 

If I might just expand a little bit, we’ve seen other 
jurisdictions where they say, “If you reach X,” and X is 
100,000 petitions, “then the government must do” action 
A. I’m suggesting that we leave our electronic petitions 
in the same format as our paper petitions and not alter 
that. We can continue to study this through this trial 
process. But for the time being, this motion just says, 
“Leave everything as is, status quo,” except for allowing 
the electronic. 
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To Mr. Balkissoon’s comments, I am not trying to 
impose on this committee anything. What I’ve done is, 
I’ve offered up a suggestion by way of a motion for the 
committee members to consider, for the committee 
members to possibly amend or whatever else they might 
choose to do, and then it will be the members of this 
committee who will actually make the decision. It’s not I 
who will make a decision. I’m asking for this committee 
to consider this. 

The other comment by Mr. Balkissoon: He suggested 
that I want a decision to be made without study. We have 
studied this; we’ve studied this for over two years. There 
has been a substantial amount. I don’t believe our 
evaluations are complete, but for us to study further 
without having anything that we can actually measure the 
outcomes of is somewhat, you know—just a continuous 
discussion without ending. At least with this motion, it 
would allow the House—all 107 members, not just this 
committee—to test, to try, and to make their own evalua-
tions as well. If some of them, such as Mr. Balkissoon, 
don’t want to do electronic petitions, that’s fine. For 
others who do want to, they have an avenue. But we 
shouldn’t all be prevented from trying things because 
some members don’t want to engage that technology or 
whatever the case may be. This allows continued evalua-
tion and examination but with the added benefit of being 
able to actually measure outcomes, when none of our 
other two-year conversations has actually allowed us to 
measure anything. 

I just want to again emphasize that this is not me 
making a decision; this is me putting forth a motion for 
this committee to consider. Even at that, it’s a motion to 
recommend to the House. The House still has the ultim-
ate authority and jurisdiction. Even though this commit-
tee recommends adopting e-petitions as a pilot project on 
a trial basis, the House may reject it anyway. But I think 
it’s time we give the House something to consider after 
over two years of conversation on this one subject in this 
committee. 

Thank you very much. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): I’ll just run down the 

list: Mr. Balkissoon, then Mr. Bisson, then Ms. 
McMahon. Mr. Balkissoon? 

Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Mr. Chair, I put my hand up to 
just quickly make a comment that I sat on this committee 
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when we did the standing order review. It was the 
standing order review and it included e-petitions. We 
spent more time studying the House schedule and the 
changes that were made in the previous session and how 
you could undo it and try to come up with a schedule that 
the minority government agreed to. That was the majority 
of our debate. 

We asked the House for permission to continue to 
meet during the summer, and if my memory serves me 
right, because I know several times I got on the phone, 
we could not get the subcommittee to set the committee 
work for some of those meetings that were scheduled, 
and then everything died. 

To say that we studied, in depth, e-petitions before—
no, we didn’t. We had a little bit of research, because it’s 
still available, but to get into it in detail, we did not. 

I just wanted to put that on the record, that I was part 
of that committee. I sat through those meetings. Our 
focus back then was the schedule of the Legislature 
because everybody did not agree with the schedule that 
was there. We had two or three or four versions of a new 
schedule. Ms. MacLeod, as the member from the PC 
Party, submitted many of those. We took them back to 
our caucus. We didn’t get agreement. To make those 
comments—being a member of the committee, I don’t 
feel that they were correct. 

Mr. Hillier explains the position that he’s putting this 
in front of us. I have to clearly state that I see it as cir-
cumventing the study and the research that need to be 
done. 

I do have a similar concern as Mr. Bisson about 
security, verification of signatures and a whole lot of 
other things, because the electronic world today is very 
complicated, and I have an electronic background, so I 
should be the guy who is supportive. 

I do want to improve the Legislature. I do want to see 
a better petition process. I am not prepared to do a quick 
fix or a Band-Aid and rush this stuff, and then you have 
to undo what you rushed. I’d rather we did it properly, 
like what the other governments are doing: study it in 
detail, look at costs, look at implementation, how much 
staff it will take to run it. In fact, many of the govern-
ments have a vetting process to vet what’s a valid peti-
tion and what is not— 

Mr. Randy Hillier: Chair, point of order. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Hillier. 
Mr. Randy Hillier: I’d like to withdraw the motion. 
Interjections. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Balkissoon has 

the floor, so we’ll wait. 
Mr. Balkissoon. 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: So, Mr. Chair, I have difficulty 

supporting the motion. I was prepared to go back to 
studying e-petitions in detail, calling our witnesses and 
getting the research we need to do, and then the commit-
tee can make that proper decision and recommend 
something to the House eventually. 

If I could just make a comment, when the Clerk 
appeared before us, I asked a specific question to the 

Clerk: “If you had your druthers”—and I know some of 
my colleagues actually said to me that that’s not a fair 
question. I did say to the Clerk, “If you had a preference 
to recommend to the committee, would you recommend 
mimicking the paper model we have or to have a better 
and a complete system and something that would 
improve the Legislature?” If my memory serves me right, 
she wanted us to do a good job and recommend some-
thing better than what we have. So I take her advice. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Bisson, I have 
you down on the list. 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: I think that what Mr. Hillier is 
trying to do is a good idea. I was going to actually 
suggest maybe there’s something we can do here to make 
this work. 

First of all, he’s talking about doing this on a trial 
basis. The idea is that after X amount of time, and I think 
it’s the end of the fall session, we get a chance to see how 
it worked and what needs to be done in order to address it 
and all that. I think that’s not a bad approach. I think it’s 
actually not a bad idea. 

The problem I had is using my website. The member 
is suggesting that you can collect a petition online, then 
you have to print it, and then you have to present it. 
That’s all he’s suggesting. It’s another way of collecting 
petitions. I’m worried that my website doesn’t have the 
ability and capacity to duplicate people voting five times 
as they do on these other things. But I’m sure the Legis-
lative Assembly does. Maybe the way to do that would 
be— 

Mr. Bas Balkissoon: No, they don’t. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: I’m sure that they do. We have 

very smart people who work here; they’re called LIS. So 
what I was going to suggest— 

Ms. Cindy Forster: They contracted all that out. 
Don’t you remember? 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: No, LIS is still here. 
But there are two points I want to make here. The first 

point is maybe what we need to do is, rather than being 
collected on the member’s website, they be collected on 
the Legislative Assembly website, and when printed 
they’re given to the member where they came from 
because you’d have to fill out the form that says, “In the 
name of the riding of Haldimand–Norfolk, the following 
people sign the following petition”—the Legislative 
Assembly can make sure that the technical part gets 
worked out—and then what happens is, it’s printed and 
given to the member from Haldimand–Norfolk, who 
actually presents it. 

But that’s up to you if you want that amendment or 
not. That’s something that I’m prepared to talk about. 
1350 

But I do want to make a point in regard to what Mr. 
Balkissoon said. If the sole reason that the government 
doesn’t want to deal with this is because, in the previous 
Parliament, we only spent four or five days talking about 
e-petitions—and if that’s true, I don’t remember; I 
remember talking about it a little bit more than that: 
Listen, I’ve seen bills come through these committees in 
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less than a day. Let’s be real here. When a government 
wants to move a bill forward, they time-allocate. They 
send the bill into committee; it gets short shrift for public 
hearings—you’re lucky if you get a day—and often you 
don’t even get hearings; you just get clause-by-clause. So 
the fact that this thing was dealt with quickly in the 
previous Parliament—and I’m not entirely in agreement 
with you. We spent a fair amount of time, and I think we 
vetted most of the issues in the previous Parliament hav-
ing to do with what we need to do electronic petitions. 

It seems to me that the member is putting forward an 
idea, and if we tweak it a bit, there might be a way to 
move forward on a trial basis so that we can say, “This 
worked or didn’t work” at the end of the fall session. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Ms. McMahon. 
Ms. Eleanor McMahon: Actually, just to step back 

for a second, I think what we’re hearing—and it’s inter-
esting, your comments, Mr. Bisson, because I was going 
to make some of them myself. So I concur. I’m by far not 
a technical expert. In my family, they refer to me as the 
techno-peasant, so I will cheerfully admit that this is not 
my area of expertise. 

By way of saying that, what we’re hearing around the 
room today is a lot of cheerful agreement that we need to 
move forward on this basis. I think what I’m hearing, and 
I could be wrong, is that we just differ a little bit on how 
quickly to get there and by what means. Mr. Bisson 
raised a very valid point in terms of where it should be 
hosted, potentially. Where you’re going, Mr. Hillier, and 
the comments that you’ve added, Mr. Bisson, tell us 
exactly what we’re trying to discuss here and what we’re 
trying to put forward, which is that we need to study this 
a little bit. 

There are some very valid concerns about security. I 
have a small concern about validity and managing 
people’s expectations. They sign a petition; they hope 
and pray that it goes somewhere off into the universe and 
that it’s validated appropriately and considered, it’s in a 
secure place and it gets the right stamp of approval, like 
the process we have now. So we want to make sure we 
have those safeguards in place too. 

Again, I want to come back to what we have in 
common, which is a desire to do this. I think we’re just 
having a little bit of a disagreement on how to get there. 
There’s a spirit of co-operation that Mr. Hillier elucidated 
on at the outset, which is really important, in moderniz-
ing the Legislative Assembly, which is also so important, 
and we are in hearty agreement with that. “Let’s get it 
right” is what we’re trying to articulate; let’s do it 
properly and use the time that we have to do that. 

I’m not saying we have to take as long as the British 
House, which is eight years and rolling, or the federal 
Parliament, which has taken 12 years to study this matter. 
Let’s build on those best practices. We don’t have to take 
that long, but what those two processes perhaps tell us is 
that this is an important matter for our consideration, for 
our public’s confidence in us and in the process, too. To 
be sure that we have the right process, let’s take the time 
that we need to study this and get it right. I think we can 

do that; we’re smart people. I think there’s a lot of will 
here to get it done. I make my comments in that spirit. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): There was a com-
ment from research—sorry, Mr. Hillier. 

Ms. Joanne McNair: I just wanted to say that the UK 
House of Commons has adopted e-petitions. They 
adopted them in February. The report is online, all their 
hearings—everything is online. You can easily download 
them. They are going to be implemented early in the next 
Parliament. Their election is on May 7. So they’re going 
full steam ahead with that. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Thank you for that. 
Mr. Hillier. 

Mr. Randy Hillier: I move to defer consideration of 
that motion. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Sorry, I didn’t hear 
you. 

Mr. Randy Hillier: I’d like to defer consideration of 
this motion. 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): Mr. 
Hillier is moving to defer consideration. It’s a dilatory 
motion, which can be moved while there is another 
motion on the floor. Basically, what it says is that the 
committee not deal with it at this time. It doesn’t put any 
conditions around it, just “not now.” If it passes, the 
committee moves on to any other business on its agenda. 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: Can I just ask a question, then? If 
you defer this, does it become the next order of business 
that the committee deals with, or only when it’s called by 
the committee? 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): It 
would remain on the committee’s agenda, to be called by 
the committee. 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: Yes, it just sits on the order paper, 
essentially. Okay. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Hillier has 
moved that this motion be deferred. All in favour? 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: A question, about the debate. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Yes, go ahead. 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: Just to the Clerk: I’ve been here 

for— 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Chair, can we take five minutes 

before we vote? 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: Can I ask my question before you 

go? It’s just a very quick question. 
I’ve been here many years. I’ve never seen the deferral 

of a motion, or maybe it has happened and I don’t 
remember. Are we breaking new ground here? Is this 
exciting? 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): No. 
There are different types of dilatory motions. There are 
three: closure— 

Mr. Gilles Bisson: I understand it’s a dilatory motion, 
and that’s— 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): 
Yes. Closure is one; adjournment completely is another; 
and, yes, to defer consideration of something, without a 
condition. If there’s a condition, then it becomes a 
substantive motion that you would— 
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Mr. Gilles Bisson: Yes, but this is a dilatory one. I’ve 
never seen a dilatory motion moved in committee to 
stand down. Is this a first? 

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Trevor Day): No. 
Interjections. 
Mr. Steve Clark: You moved adjournment 10 

times— 
Mr. Gilles Bisson: No, no; I’m not talking about 

adjournment. This is just— 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: A five-minute recess? 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): I do have a request 

for a five-minute recess. 
The committee recessed from 1356 to 1401. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Committee, we’re 

about to vote on Mr. Hillier’s proposal to defer his 
motion. 

All in favour? Those opposed? I’m not sure what I 
would call it, but it passed—a proposal? 

I declare that motion deferred, if I’m not mistaken. 
This isn’t going to hang up the committee, as I under-
stand. 

Mr. Balkissoon, please. 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Mr. Chair, I move that the com-

mittee continue its consideration of e-petitions. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Does anyone need a 

copy of that? Does anyone need a recess? Do you wish 
to—oh, we do have a copy. 

Interjection. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Balkissoon, any 

comments on your motion? 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Mr. Chair, as I stated before, 

I’m in full support of e-petitions. I’m in full support of 
proper committee work to adopt it. I’m in support of 
listening to some expert witnesses and others who have 
experienced it. Then the committee can deliberate and 
make a decision to go forward with a system that we 
could all be proud of, a system that we understand would 
improve what we have, and it would engage the public in 
the political process a lot better than it does today. I’m all 
for that. 

I would rather go through the exercise of reviewing 
every possibility and then look at best practices and come 
up with something that we could send to the Legislature. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Any further discus-
sion on this motion? 

We have a motion on the floor from Mr. Balkissoon 
that— 

Interjection. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Ms. Forster, please 

go ahead. 
Ms. Cindy Forster: How long are we going to con-

tinue to consider e-petitions? I understand that you earlier 
agreed on some date, February 18, to deal with some 
bills—some Liberal bills, some Conservative bills—and 
that you haven’t firmed up any of those bills at this point. 

In the meantime, there’s another bill that has actually 
come to this committee: Peggy Sattler’s Bill 64, the Pro-
tecting Interns and Creating a Learning Economy Act. 

I think it’s important that we’ve debated these bills in 
the House for hours on end. We all talk about wanting to 
actually get some work done here in the Legislature. 
Apparently there was no interest in even doing a trial of 
e-petitions, so we’re going to study it. 

We’ve heard from the research clerk that the British 
Parliament is introducing e-petitions in the House this 
spring, so perhaps we’ll get a copy of that report and that 
process, which we can look at. But I think that to sit here 
today and waste our time continuing to talk about this 
when we could actually be setting up dealing with some 
real bills that impact some real people here in the 
province of Ontario—that’s important. 

I don’t know whether it would be in order, Mr. Clerk, 
but I would like to move an amendment to this motion 
that would include Ms. Sattler’s bill on a particular 
date—perhaps at the next meeting of the Legislative 
Assembly committee—in rotation with what was already 
set out in this document on February 18. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Do you have that 
motion for distribution? 

Ms. Cindy Forster: No. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Could you draft that 

motion? 
Ms. Cindy Forster: Yes. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Okay. A five-minute 

recess? 
Ms. Cindy Forster: Sure. That would be fine. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Is that okay with the 

committee? 
The committee recessed from 1406 to 1411. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Our committee is to 

reconvene. Ms. Forster had the floor. 
Ms. Cindy Forster: Yes. At this point, I don’t have 

an amendment. I understand there is going to be another 
amendment to this motion from the government. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Thank you. I have 
Mr. Clark, Mr. Hillier and Mr. Ballard. Mr. Clark. 

Mr. Steve Clark: Yes. It’s pretty obvious, Chair, 
what’s going to happen today. The amendment and the 
discussion that the committee had on February 18 is 
going to be superseded. The government is going to shut 
down the co-operation that was expressed on February 18 
and go ahead with their desire to have an e-petition 
review for as long as the government decides they want 
to have it. 

I think Mr. Hillier and I have stated so many times—I 
can’t even count the number of times that we have 
stated—our support for e-petitions, how easy and in-
expensive we believe they could be started on a provi-
sional basis. 

But you know what? Listen, as House leader of the 
opposition, I lost the battle on committee representation. 
This government has the majority on this committee, and 
it can do whatever it wants. It’s appearing to me that 
what the government wants is not to have public hearings 
on Bill 12, not to have public hearings on Bill 27 and not 
to have committee hearings on Bill 42. 
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I feel we had, with nine weeks remaining, an oppor-
tunity to talk about e-petitions and an opportunity to hear 
those three bills and, in fact, Ms. Sattler’s bill as well. 
We had ample time to do everything and still give us lots 
of time to work on a more permanent discussion and a 
permanent policy on e-petitions. 

If I was Mr. Potts, Mr. Barrett or Mr. Ballard, I would 
be disappointed that my bill wouldn’t receive hearings 
and clause-by-clause debate prior to June. But you know 
what? Ms. Wong, Ms. McMahon, Mr. Ballard, Mr. 
Balkissoon and Mr. Anderson can pretty well control 
whatever they want. If they want to have a discussion on 
e-petitions, that’s what we’re going to have. I’m 
disappointed, but that’s up to the government. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Mr. Hillier. 
Mr. Randy Hillier: Thank you, Chair. I think it’s 

pretty clear and evident that the intent and the motivation 
of this government motion is to purposefully frustrate the 
will of the House and purposely prevent any private 
member’s bill from being considered by this committee. I 
find it, indeed, very unfortunate—I find it extremely 
unfortunate—that the spirit and the co-operation that we 
found on February 18 has now been frustrated by the 
government. I would suggest and I would ask, Chair, that 
when this motion comes for a vote, it be a recorded vote. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Thank you, Mr. 
Hillier. Mr. Ballard? 

Mr. Chris Ballard: Mr. Chair, I’d like to make a 
simple amendment to Mr. Balkissoon’s motion. It would 
simply be to continue on the sentence with “until other-
wise decided by the committee,” so that the amended 
motion in its entirety would read: “I move that the 
committee continue its consideration of e-petitions until 
otherwise decided by the committee.” 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Okay. We now go to 
discussion of this amendment. Ms. Forster? 

Ms. Cindy Forster: The amendment doesn’t really 
matter, because, at the end of the day, the government 
has the majority. Regardless of what the committee wants 
to do, the other two parties here really will have no say. 
We could talk about e-petitions for the next two years 
and never talk about any of these bills. 

I find it interesting that the government has been in 
such a hurry, since the election back in June, to time-
allocate all kinds of bills, to stifle debate on many im-
portant issues in this province, yet here, when we actually 
have an opportunity where we’ve fully debated the bills 
under the rules of this Legislative Assembly, we’re now 
going to delay having any public hearings, delay having 
any clause-by-clause, delay bringing them back for third 
reading or any royal assent. 

Mr. Potts was in a big hurry to actually co-opt Mr. 
Prue’s bill on protecting employees’ tips, which I think 
received all-party approval during that time. Certainly, 
this was a huge issue across the province. We heard from 
thousands of employees. Michael Prue was across this 
province from one end to the other and heard about 
owners of restaurants and bars actually taking part of 
employees’ tips, employees that are paid probably the 

lowest of any occupation in this province. They’re paid, 
in many cases, even lower than the minimum wage, 
unless they are working in a high-end bar or restaurant in 
a community. So it’s a bill that is important to thousands 
of low-paid workers in this province, but we’re going to 
let it sit here idly on the Legislative Assembly paper and 
not deal with it. 

Now, Mr. Ballard is not too concerned about his bill 
moving forward, because we just had a municipal 
election and there won’t be another one for four years. As 
long as his bill is dealt with in the next two or three 
years— 

Interjections. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Order. 
Ms. Cindy Forster: —it doesn’t really matter and it’s 

really about one person in one region. 
Then there was Mr. Barrett’s bill, which certainly is 

important to him and important to a number of people in 
this province, important to health issues across the 
province. But we’re going to let that one sit on this order 
paper as well. For how long? 

Of course, new bills coming forward in the meantime 
as well—the bills on the utility all-terrain vehicles, which 
was a bill that a member of my caucus, Mr. Vanthof, and 
a member of the PC caucus, Mr. Miller, have brought 
forward, because it is so important. 

Mr. Randy Hillier: And a member of the Liberal 
caucus, Mr. Crack. 

Mr. Steve Clark: Yes, Mr. Crack had a motion on it, 
and it got approval. 

Ms. Cindy Forster: And a motion from Mr. Crack, 
but we’re not going to act. We’re not going to deal with 
that motion, we’re not going to act on it, even though it’s 
certainly important to people who live in rural commun-
ities and people who live in the north. 

Then we have Ms. Sattler’s on protecting interns, and 
we’ve all heard about unpaid internships. We’ve heard 
about deaths of people, actually, who were unpaid interns 
working two jobs, one as an unpaid intern and another 
job somewhere else, trying to make ends meet so they 
could support their family. But we’re not going to deal 
with that issue either. 

I have to say that certainly on behalf of my caucus, 
we’re very disappointed that the government is just going 
to kind of stall this out and not deal with any private 
members’ bills for who knows how long. 
1420 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Thank you, Ms. 
Forster. 

I remind the committee: We have before us Mr. 
Ballard’s amendment to Mr. Balkissoon’s motion. Are 
the members ready to vote? 

Ms. Eleanor McMahon: Can I continue debate? 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Please go ahead. 
Ms. Eleanor McMahon: I just want to respond, in 

part, to the member opposite by saying that I have been 
sitting here since the committee started at 1 o’clock. 
What I heard clearly from this side of the table, Mr. 
Chair, unless I’m mistaken—and we can check 
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Hansard—was an absolute desire to examine the issue of 
e-petitions: a support for that and a desire to have that 
conversation. I didn’t hear anybody over here saying that 
we weren’t going to discuss private members’ business; 
that’s certainly not our position. I just think it’s really 
important to say that on the record, so that people under-
stand that that is not our position. By way of responding 
to your comments, thank you for making them, but I do 
think it’s important that people understand that we didn’t 
say that, and that is not our intent. 

I heard and I witnessed, sitting here, some very good 
dialogue about co-operation today. It’s actually been an 
absolute pleasure to be here and sit and listen to the 
support. As someone who likes to focus on what we have 
in common, I think what we have in common is a desire 
to proceed on e-petitions and have that conversation, 
because we all want to modernize our Legislature and our 
processes, and improve our democratic process. 

On that basis, Mr. Chair, I just wanted to make that 
point as part of the conversation we are having and 
underscore again what I’ve been hearing today from my 
colleagues and certainly from the members opposite: a 
great deal of co-operation and consideration for our 
common ground. I just wanted to assert that. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Ms. Wong. 
Ms. Soo Wong: Following my colleague Ms. Mahon 

with respect to the motions and the concerns raised by 
the opposition members, Mr. Chair, when we talk about 
e-petitions, we have to be very mindful of diverse On-
tario. I remember that yesterday in question period a 
member of the opposition party asked a question about 
equity and what have you. 

When we’re having this conversation on e-petitions, 
it’s already challenging that in this committee the 
members are having challenges with technology. On top 
of that, we have very diverse communities. I know that 
many of my constituents are what they call digital 
natives. Those individuals have very little access to tech-
nology. So when we’re bringing forth a petition that is 
outside the traditional pen and paper, and now you’re 
saying you want to rush this to deliver, I would have 
concerns. 

I’m prepared to listen and to work—I have worked 
with committee members on different committees—and I 
am prepared to get whatever bill needs to be done. But 
this particular issue of e-petitions cannot be done in such 
a quick manner, the way the opposition parties suggest 
we should just go and do it, have it done, deliver it to the 
House and what have you. 

I would dare say there are individuals in our commun-
ities who don’t have computers. If they do have 
computers, the access piece: Is the electronic signature 
okay, signed in the mother tongue versus English or 
French? Those are things we have to look at. 

At the end of the day, Mr. Chair, to criticize the gov-
ernment members of this committee as not prepared to 
work with the opposition members is far from the truth. I 
have sat here patiently, and this is the first time I spoke in 
almost two hours of this committee. I want to find some 

happy solution to move forward on some of these items. 
People elected us from our own ridings to hear, to serve 
and to work with items. I don’t believe this e-petition 
should be done in such a quick manner, without real, 
robust conversation, getting the research department and 
bringing in the experts. 

I know I am not an expert, and I would dare say 
nobody in this room is an expert; if you are, I apologize 
in advance. I am not prepared to rush the e-petition con-
versation in the next 45 minutes. I really believe that 
Ontarians expect us to do better, because this is new 
territory when it comes to having documented records. 
Their name and personal information, privacy 
legislation—all these things have to be considered. We’re 
changing to a new phase of the technology era, and at the 
end of the day we have to make sure that we do it right. 
There’s an old saying: If you’re going to do it, do it right, 
instead of doing it, slapping it on and doing it quickly; 
then you have got to come back, re-track and make more 
changes. 

Thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing me to speak. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Thank you, Ms. 

Wong. Are the members ready to vote? We’re voting on 
Mr. Ballard’s amendment to Mr. Balkissoon’s motion. 
All in favour? Those opposed? I declare the amendment 
passed. 

Are the members ready to vote on the motion by Mr. 
Balkissoon, as amended? 

Mr. Randy Hillier: Chair, I call for a recorded vote. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Recorded vote. 

Ayes 
Anderson, Balkissoon, Ballard, McMahon, Wong. 

Nays 
Forster. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): I declare the motion 
carried. 

Mr. Balkissoon? 
Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Yes, Mr. Chair. I’m a little 

surprised at the vote, but I have another motion I’d like to 
move. 

I move: 
(1) That, in order to assist the committee in drafting its 

report on the advantages and disadvantages of integrating 
e-petitions into the assembly’s existing petition proced-
ures, each member of the subcommittee provide the 
Clerk of the Committee with the names and contact 
information (where possible) of expert witnesses that 
they would like to invite to appear before the committee, 
no later than 12 noon on the Thursday of the week 
following the passage of this motion; 

(2) That these witnesses are scheduled based on their 
availability; 
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(3) That each witness receive up to 20 minutes for 
their presentation, followed by 40 minutes of questions 
from committee members; and 

(4) That, at the next meeting following the passage of 
this motion, the committee hear from the research officer 
on the process that other jurisdictions followed when 
considering e-petitions. 

Examples of that are the House of Commons, the 
British Parliament etc. 

You’ll have to make a copy, because I had some 
modifications. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): I guess we’ll recess 
for a copy. Five minutes. 

The committee recessed from 1428 to 1445. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): I would like to ask 

Mr. Balkissoon to read the motion again. I understand 
there were some minor changes to it. 

Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Yes, with the assistance of the 
Clerk, Mr. Chair, I am happy to do that. I move: 

(1) That, in order to assist the committee in drafting its 
report on the advantages and disadvantages of integrating 
e-petitions into the assembly’s existing petition proced-
ures, each member of the subcommittee provide the 
Clerk of the Committee with the names and contact 
information (where possible) of expert witnesses that 
they would like to invite to appear before the committee, 

no later than 12 noon on the Thursday of the week 
following the passage of this motion; 

(2) That these witnesses are scheduled based on their 
availability; 

(3) That each witness receive up to 20 minutes for 
their presentation, followed by 40 minutes of questions 
from committee members; and 

(4) That, at the next meeting following the passage of 
this motion, the committee hear from the research officer 
on the process that other jurisdictions followed when 
considering e-petitions. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Do you wish to 
speak to your motion? 

Mr. Bas Balkissoon: Mr. Chair, I’m moving this 
motion to facilitate the work of the committee, at least as 
I originally perceived that we were going to do. 

The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Any further 
discussion? No further discussion. 

Are the members ready to vote? All those in favour? 
Those opposed? I declare the motion carried. 

Any further business? Shall this committee adjourn for 
the day? 

Mr. Randy Hillier: Yes. 
The Chair (Mr. Toby Barrett): Adjourned. 
The committee adjourned at 1447. 
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